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a. INVESTMENT FUND INFORMATION

1. Name of Investment Fund
Global Saudi Equity Fund

2. Investment Objectives & Strategy
Global Saudi Equity Fund is an open-ended investment fund which invests primarily in shares of listed companies and in IPOs on the Saudi
Stock Market to achieve long term capital growth.

Fund Manager depends on research and recommendations of its research team in making investment decisions and to evaluate the economic
conditions and capital markets, to manage the Fund at a high level of efficiency and professionalism.

Fund shall invest at least 80% of its Net Asset Value (NAV) in shares of listed companies and IPOs and not more than 10% of the NAV can
be invested in shares of a single company. In case the market value of a listed company exceeds 10% of the total market capitalization of
companies listed on the Saudi Stock Exchange, the Fund Manager can increase the investment proportion in the company to the percentage
represented by the company in the mentioned market capitalization. Fund plans to diversify its investment over different sectors, without any
intention to concentrate in a single or more sectors. Fund Manager aims to make diversified investments into sectors and companies based on
its view of risk-adjusted return expectations and assessment of the investment opportunity.

3. Distribution of Income and Gain Policy
Dividends and/or income are reinvested in the Fund and are not paid out or distributed to unitholders.

4. Fund’s reports shall be made available upon request “Free of Charge”.

b. FUND PERFORMANCE

1. Last three (3) financial years

Year Vl;lleuteﬁ;s:;) o Net Asset Val:ieg::er unit (S4R) - No. of Units Expense Ratio %
2019 625,683,685.89 281.0128 313.4105 254.5312 2,226,531 2.12%
2018 569,051,438.25 255.4515 268.3158 219.8742 2,227,630 2.09%
2017 502,034,801.53 220.7729 227.3551 199.2764 2,273987 2.00%

2. a) Total return for 1yr, 3yrs and 5yrs

Years 1year 3 Years 5 Years
Returns % 10.01% 34.70% 18.17%
b) Annual total return for last 10 years c) Fund Fees and Expenses
Years Annual Returns % Year 2019
2019 10.01% Management Fees 10,985,157
2018 15.71% Administration Fees 816,254
2017 5.82% Custody Fees 719,925
2016 -1.85% Audit Fees 70,000
2015 -10.62% Director Fees 10,000
2014 13.82% CMA Fees 7500
2013 30.10% Tadawul Fees 5,000
2012 6.98% Other Expenses 16
201 -3.83% VAT Expenses 629,643
2010 15.23% Total 13,243,495
Expense Ratio 2.12%

3. Material Changes
During 2019, there were NO material changes that affected the performance of the Fund.
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4. Exercise of Voting Rights

During 2019, the Fund Manager exercised voting for the following companies in the Fund.

Date of
# Name of Issuer General Subject of the Vote Decision
Assembly

1 Samba 20/01/2019  Vote on the election of members of the Board of Directors for the next session, Yes
which begins from 01/20/2019 for a period of three years ending on 01/19/2022
Vote on the formation of the review committee for the new session, which starts Yes
from 01/20/2019 for a period of three years ending on 19/01/2022

2 Saudi Arabian 10/03/2019  Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes

Mining Co.

Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors’ report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on the recommendation of the Board of Directors not to distribute dividends Yes
for the year ended 2018
Vote to appoint an external auditor from among the candidates on the Yes
recommendation of the Audit Committee
Vote to discharge the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the Abstain
financial year ended 2018
Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the financial year ended 2018
Vote on amendment of Article (16) of the Articles of Association of the Company Yes
Vote on amendment of Article (28), Paragraph (2) of the company's articles of Yes
association regarding calling societies
Vote on amendment of Article (39) of the company's articles of association Yes
regarding the committee's reports
Vote on amendment of Article (43) Paragraph (2) of the company's articles of Yes
association regarding financial documents

3 Advanced 19/03/2019  Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes

Petrochemical Co.

Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors’ report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on the distribution of dividends Yes
Vote on the Board of Directors' mandate to distribute interim cash dividends to Yes
shareholders semi-annually or quarterly for the financial year 2018
Vote on the recommendation of the Board of Directors to pay the remuneration to Yes
the members of the Board of Directors
Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the Yes
financial year ended 2018
Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates  Abstain
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee

4 Riyad Bank 19/03/2019  Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the Yes
financial year ended 2018
Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Yes
for the financial year ended 2018
Vote on the distribution of cash dividends during the first half of the year 2018 Yes
Vote on Board of Directors' recommendation to distribute cash dividends for the Yes
second half of 2018
Vote on authorizing the Board of Directors to distribute interim dividends on a semi- Yes
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Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
5 Samba 25/03/2019 Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors’ report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on the Board's recommendation to distribute dividends for the second half in Yes
addition to dividends distributed for the first half
Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the  Abstain
financial year ended 2018
Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the financial year ended 2018
Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
Vote on authorizing the Board of Directors to distribute interim dividends on a semi- Yes
annual or quarterly basis for the fiscal year 2019
Vote on the reconfiguration of the audit committee which begins on 25/03/19 and Abstain
ends on 19/01/22
6 Alinma Bank 26/03/2019 Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors’ report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on the Board's recommendation to distribute dividends for the fiscal year 2018 Yes
Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the  Abstain
financial year ended 2018
Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the financial year ended 2018
Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
Vote on updating the list of candidates for membership in the Board of Directors Yes
Vote on updating the review committee regulations Yes
Vote on the dividend policy Yes
Vote on the election of members of the Board of Directors for the next session, Abstain
which begins from 05/21/2019 and for a period of three years ending on 20/20/2022
Vote on the formation of the audit committee for the next session, which starts from Yes
05/21/2019 and for a period of three years ending on 20/20/2022
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
7  Arab National Bank 27/03/2019  Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors' report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on the distribution of cash dividends during the first half of the year 2018 Yes
Vote on Board of Directors' recommendation to distribute cash dividends for the Yes
second half of 2018
Vote to increase the bank’s capital from (10) billion riyals to (15) billion riyals Yes
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Vote on the amendment of the remuneration policy for members of the Board of Yes
Directors and committees emanating from the Council
Vote to amend the work committee of the audit committee Yes
Vote on the amendment of the work regulations of the Nomination and Yes
Remuneration Committee
Vote on amending Article (3-49) of the articles of association regarding the Yes
distribution of profits
Vote on the amendment of Article (7) of the Basic Law relating to capital in the event Yes
of approval of the capital increase provision
Vote on the amendment of Article (54) of the articles of association regarding the Yes
expiry of the company
Vote to add an item in Article (3) of the articles of association related to the Yes
company's objectives
Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the  Abstain
financial year ended 2018
Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the financial year ended 2018
Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Audit Committee for ~ Abstain
the financial year ended 2018
Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
8 Saudilnvestment Bank 28/03/2019 Vote on the reconfiguration of the audit committee, which begins on 28/03/19 and Yes
ends on 13/02/22
Vote on the bank’s purchase of the full shareholder share of Mizuho Bank Company Yes
Limited in the Saudi Investment Bank of 18,749,860 shares, which represents 2.50%
of the capital of the Saudi Investment Bank, with a total amount of SAR 253,123,110,
i.e. at a price of 13.50 riyals per share, as treasury shares
Vote on the bank’s board of directors ‘'mandate to complete a purchase transaction Yes
of the shareholder’s share of Mizuho Bank Company Ltd. in the Saudi Investment
Bank in one or several stages
Vote on authorizing the board of directors of the bank to sell the shares purchased Yes
from the shareholder, Mizuho Bank Company Limited, in one or several stages
9 Saudi British Bank 01/04/2019  Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors’ report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the  Abstain
financial year ended 2018
Vote on Board of Directors' recommendation to distribute cash dividends for the Yes
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Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the financial year ended 2018
Vote on authorizing the Board of Directors to distribute interim dividends on a semi- Yes
annual or quarterly basis for the fiscal year 2019

10 Al Rajhi Bank 03/04/2019 Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors’ report for the year ended 2018 Yes

Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the  Abstain
financial year ended 2018

Vote on the distribution of cash dividends during the first half of the year 2018 Yes
Vote on Board of Directors' recommendation to distribute cash dividends for the Yes
second half of 2018

Vote on the recommendation of the Board of Directors to increase the bank’s capital Yes

by SAR 8,750 million from SAR 16,250 million to SAR 25,000 million riyals

Vote on authorizing the Board of Directors to distribute interim dividends on a semi- Yes
annual or quarterly basis for the fiscal year 2019

Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee

Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the financial year ended 2018

Vote on the amendment of Article (31) of the bank’s articles of association related to Yes
inviting societies to comply with the companies 'system

Vote on the amendment of Article (6) of the bank’s articles of association regarding Yes
the capital increase

Vote on the amendment of Article (16) of the Bank's articles of association regarding
the powers of the Board of Directors

Vote on amending Article (25) of the bank's articles of association related to the Yes
report of the audit and compliance committee to comply with the companies

'system

Vote on the amendment of Article (33) of the bank’s articles of association regarding Yes
the quorum for the regular general assembly meeting

Vote on amending Article (43) of the bank’s articles of association regarding financial Yes
documents to comply with the companies 'system

Vote on amending the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Regulations Yes
Vote on the amendment to the Regulations of the Audit and Compliance Committee Yes
Vote on the amendment of the remuneration policy, compensation of members Yes

of the Board of Directors, committees emanating from it, and the Compliance and
Review Committee

Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
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Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
1 Yanbu National 04/04/2019 Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Petrochemical Co.
Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors' report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the  Abstain
financial year ended 2018
Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the financial year ended 2018
Vote on the distribution of cash dividends during the first half of the year 2018 Yes
Vote on Board of Directors' recommendation to distribute cash dividends for the Yes
second half of 2018
Vote on authorizing the Board of Directors to distribute interim dividends on a semi- Yes
annual or quarterly basis for the fiscal year 2019
12 Saudi Arabian 07/04/2019 Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Fertilizer Co.
Vote on Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors’ report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
Vote on the distribution of cash dividends during the first half of the year 2018 Yes
Vote on Board of Directors' recommendation to distribute cash dividends for the Yes
second half of 2018
Vote on authorizing the Board of Directors to distribute interim dividends on a semi- Yes
annual or quarterly basis for the fiscal year 2019
Vote on the recommendation of the Board of Directors to appoint Mr. Yusef bin Abstain
Muhammad Al-Suhaibani as a member of the Board of Directors
Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the ~ Abstain
financial year ended 2018
Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the financial year ended 2018
Vote to amend the work committee of the audit committee Yes
Vote on the amendment of Article (27) of the Basic Law relating to the powers of the Yes
Chairman
Vote on amending Article (35) of the Basic Law relating to the invitation of the Yes
General Assembly
Vote on the amendment of Article (42) of the Basic Law relating to the committee's Yes
reports
Vote on the amendment of Article (46) of the Basic Law relating to financial Yes
documents
13 Almarai Co. 07/04/2019 Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors’ report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
Vote on Board of Directors' recommendation to distribute cash dividends for the Yes
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Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the ~ Abstain
financial year ended 2018

Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the financial year ended 2018

Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on the purchase of up to 10 million shares and to allocate them within the Yes

Employee Share Participation Program (ESOP)

Vote on the amendments to be made on paragraph (7) of Article 3 of the Company’s Yes
Bylaws concerning the Objectives of the Company

Vote on the amendments to be made on paragraph (6) of Article 20 of the Yes
Company's Bylaws concerning the Powers of the Board of Directors

Vote on the amendment to be made on paragraph (3) of Article 22 of the Company'’s Yes
Bylaws concerning the Powers of Chairman of Board of Directors

Vote on the amendment to be made on paragraph (1) of Article 26 of the Company’s Yes
Bylaws concerning the Conflict of Interest and Competing the Company, and adding
new paragraphs (2), (3) and (4) to Article 26

Vote on the amendment to be made on paragraph (2) of Article 31 of the Company’s Yes
Bylaws concerning the Invitation for General Assembly of Shareholders

Vote on the amendment to be made on Article 42 of the Company’s Bylaws which is Yes
related to the Report of Audit Committee

Vote on the amendment to be made on paragraph (2) of Article 47 of the Company's Yes
Bylaws concerning the Financial Documents
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Vote on the amendment to be made on Article 52 of the Company’s Bylaws Yes
concerning the Liability Action by adding paragraph 2
14 Saudi Cement Co. 16/04/2019  Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors’ report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the  Abstain
financial year ended 2018
Vote on the distribution of cash dividends during the first half of the year 2018 Yes
Vote on Board of Directors' recommendation to distribute cash dividends for the Yes
second half of 2018
Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the financial year ended 2018
Vote on updating the Nominations and Remuneration Committee Rules Yes
Vote on updating the Audit Committee Rules Yes
Vote on updating the remuneration and allowances policy for members of the Board Yes
of Directors, its committees, the Secretariat and the Executive Management
Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
Vote on authorizing the Board of Directors to distribute interim dividends on a semi- Yes
annual or quarterly basis for the fiscal year 2019
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
15 Bank AlJazirah 16/04/2019  Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors’ report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the  Abstain
financial year ended 2018
Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
Vote on Board of Directors recommendation to distribute cash dividends to the Yes
shareholders for the year ended 2018
Vote to amend Article (20) of the Articles of Association of the Audit Committee Yes
Vote on the amendment of Article (31) of the Basic Law of General Associations Yes
Vote on the amendment of Article (43) of the Basic Law regarding the annual reports Yes
Vote to amend Article (46) of the Basic Law on Disputes Yes
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
16 Abdullah Al Othaim 18/04/2019 Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Markets Co.
Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors' report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the ~ Abstain
financial year ended 2018
Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes
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Vote on Board of Directors recommendation to distribute cash dividends to the Yes
shareholders for the year ended 2018

Vote on the Board of Directors' mandate to distribute quarterly or semi-annual Yes
dividends for the fiscal year 2018
Vote on the appointment of the auditors of the company from among the Yes
candidates on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the financial year ended 2018
Vote on authorizing the Board of Directors to distribute interim dividends on a semi- Yes
annual or quarterly basis for the fiscal year 2019
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
17 Saudi Investment Bank 18/04/2019 Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors’ report for the year ended 2018 Yes

Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the  Abstain
financial year ended 2018

Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the financial year ended 2018
Vote on appointing the external auditor from among the candidates on the Yes
recommendation of the Audit Committee
Vote to amend the work committee of the audit committee Yes
Vote on amending Article (20) of the bank’s articles of association regarding the Yes
powers of the Board of Directors
Vote on the amendment of Article (29) of the bank’s articles of association regarding Yes
calling for associations
Vote on the amendment of Article (40) of the bank's articles of association regarding Yes
the reports of the audit committee
Vote on the amendment of Article (45) of the bank's articles of association regarding Yes
financial documents
18 Mobile 18/04/2019  Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes

Telecommunication

Company Saudi

Arabia
Vote on Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
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Vote on Auditors’ report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on the election of members of the Board of Directors for the next session, Abstain
which begins from 26/04/19 for a period of three years ending on 25/04/22
Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the  Abstain
financial year ended 2018
Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the financial year ended 2018
Vote on the decision of the Board of Directors to appoint Mr. Martel Anthony Karate  Abstain
as a member of the Board of Directors (a non-executive member) until the end of
the current session
Vote on the formation of the audit committee for the next session, which starts from Yes
26/04/2019 for a period of three years ending on 25/04/22
19 Sahara International 21/04/2019  Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Petrochemical Co.
Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors’ report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the  Abstain
financial year ended 2018
Vote on the distribution of cash dividends during the first half and second half of the Yes
year 2018
Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the financial year ended 2018
Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
Vote on the dividend policy and authorize the Board of Directors to make any future Yes
amendments to it
Vote on forming a general reserve for the company and authorizing the board of Yes
directors to adopt the relevant policy
Vote on authorizing the Board of Directors to distribute interim dividends on a semi- Yes
annual or quarterly basis for the fiscal year 2019
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
20 Mouwasat Medical 22/04/2019 Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Services Co.
Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors’ report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
Vote on Board of Directors recommendation to distribute cash dividends to the Yes
shareholders for the year ended 2018
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
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Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the ~ Abstain
financial year ended 2018

Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the financial year ended 2018

21 Saudi Telecom Co. 24/04/2019 Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors’ report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
Vote on adopting the company's profit distribution policy for the next three years Yes
starting from the fourth quarter of 2018
Vote on the recommendation of the Board of Directors with additional one-time Yes
distributions for the year of 2018 at SAR 2 per share
Vote on the amendment of Article No. (16), Paragraph (B) of the Company's Articles Yes
of Association, relating to bonds and sukuk
Vote on the amendment of Article No. (29), Paragraph No. (2) of the Company's Yes
Articles of Association
Vote on the amendment of Article No. (40) of the Company’s Articles of Association Yes
Vote on the amendment of Article No. (44), Paragraph No. (2) of the Company'’s Yes

Articles of Association

Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the financial year ended 2018

Vote on the amendment of the policy of nominating members of the Board of Yes
Directors and their remunerations, bonuses of sub-committees, and executive
management awards

Vote on the amendment of the work regulations of the Nomination and Yes
Remuneration Committee

Vote on the amendment of the work committee of the audit committee, and on Abstain
its tasks and work controls, and reward its members amounting to 150,000 riyals
annually for each member

Vote on the company establishing an international sukuk program for an amount not Yes
exceeding $ 5,000 million

22 Al-Babtain Power and  24/04/2019 Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes

Telecommunication
Co.

Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors' report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the  Abstain
financial year ended 2018
Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the financial year ended 2018
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on the formation of the audit committee to start from the date of the Assembly Yes
until 26/07/2021
Vote on amending the Nomination and Remuneration Committee's work regulations Yes
Vote on authorizing the Board of Directors to distribute interim dividends on a semi- Yes
annual or quarterly basis for the fiscal year 2019.

23 Saudi Electricity Co. 30/04/2019 Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes
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Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors' report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Board of Directors recommendation to distribute cash dividends to the Yes
shareholders for the year ended 2018
Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the  Abstain
financial year ended 2018
Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the financial year ended 2018
Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
24 Jarir Marketing Co. 30/04/2019 Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors' report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on the distribution of cash dividends during Q1, Q2, Q3 and Q4 of the year 2018 Yes
Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the  Abstain
financial year ended 2018
Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the financial year ended 2018
Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates  Abstain
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on authorizing the Board of Directors to distribute interim dividends on a semi- Yes
annual or quarterly basis for the fiscal year 2019
25 United Electronics Co.  01/05/2019 Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors' report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the  Abstain
financial year ended 2018
Vote on the distribution of cash dividends for first half of the year 2018 Yes
Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
Vote on authorizing the Board of Directors to distribute interim dividends on a semi- Yes
annual or quarterly basis for the fiscal year 2019
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
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Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
26 Banque Saudi Fransi 01/05/2019  Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors’ report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on the distribution of cash dividends for first half of the year 2018 Yes
Vote on Board of Directors' recommendation to distribute cash dividends for the Yes

second half of 2018

Vote on authorizing the Board of Directors to distribute interim dividends on a semi- Yes
annual or quarterly basis for the fiscal year 2019

Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the  Abstain
financial year ended 2018

Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee

Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the financial year ended 2018

Vote on the rules of the long-term incentive program for bank employees Yes
Vote on authorizing the Board of Directors to adopt any future amendments to the Yes
rules of the long-term incentives program for bank employees

Vote on updating the remuneration and compensation policy for board members, Yes
committee members and executive management

Vote on updating the list of the audit committee Yes
Vote on updating the Nomination and Remuneration Committee regulation Yes
Vote on updating the nomination, membership, evaluation and replacement policy Yes
for the Board of Directors

Vote to update the social responsibility policy Yes
Vote on the reconfiguration of the audit committee which starts from 01/05/2019 Yes
and ends on 31/12/2120

Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on amending Article (27) of the bank’s articles of association regarding Yes

attending societies

Vote on the amendment of Article (30) of the bank’s articles of association related to Yes
calling societies

Vote on the amendment of Article (42) of the bank's articles of association regarding Yes
financial documents

27 Savola Group 08/05/2019 Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors’ report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes

on the recommendation of the Audit Committee

Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the  Abstain
financial year ended 2018

Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the financial year ended 2018
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Vote on the Board of Directors' resolution to appoint Mr. Mohammed Ibrahim Abstain
Al Issaa as a member of the Board of Directors (independent member) as of
06/09/2018 and until 30/06/2019

Voting on the Board of Directors' recommendation to appoint Mr. Mohammed Abstain
Ibrahim Al Issaa as a member of the Group Audit committee as of 06/09/2018 and
until 30/06/2019

Vote on the election of the members of the Board of Directors for the new office Abstain
term starting on 1st of July 2019 (for a period of three years)

Vote on amendment of article (3) of the company’s By-law regarding the Company’s Yes
Objectives
Vote on amendment the article (28) of the company’s By-law regarding the Yes
invitation of the general assemblies
Vote on amendment the article (39) of the company's By-law regarding the Audit Yes
committee's reports
Vote on amendment the article (44) of the company’s By-law regarding the financial Yes
documents
Vote on formation of the Audit Committee starting 01/07/19 until 30/09/22 Abstain
Vote on the amendment of the Audit committee charter Yes
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
28 The Company for 14/05/2019  Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Cooperative Insurance
Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors' report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes

on the recommendation of the Audit Committee

Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the  Abstain
financial year ended 2018

Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the financial year ended 2018

Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
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Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
29 Saudi British Bank 15/05/2019  Vote on the proposed amendments to the technical services agreement between Yes
SABB and HSBC Holdings plc
Vote on the amendments to SABB's bylaws Yes
Vote on the proposed merger (the "Merger") of SABB and Alawwal bank ("Alawwal Yes

bank") to be effected by way of a merger pursuant to Articles 190 to 193 of the
Companies Law, through the issuance of 0.48535396 new SABB shares for every
share in Alawwal bank subject to the terms and conditions of the merger agreement
between SABB and Alawwal bank dated 3 October 2018G (the "Merger Agreement")

Vote on the contracts and dealings to be entered into between (i) the Company and Yes
HSBC Asia Holdings B.V. and (ii) the Company and HSBC Saudi Arabia, pursuant to

a sale and purchase agreement (the “SPA") to sell 1,000,000 shares of HSBC Saudi

Arabia held by the Company to HSBC Asia Holdings B.V. for an aggregate purchase

price of SAR 36,000,000 (the "Transaction")

Vote on increasing the Bank’s Auditors fees based on the recommendation of the Yes
Audit Committee due to the increase of their scope as part of the Merger with
Alawwal Bank

30 Sahara International 16/05/2019  Vote to increase the capital of Sipchem for the purpose of acquiring all the Yes
Petrochemical Co. shareholders of Sahara Petrochemical Company according to the offer to exchange
securities, and this includes agreeing to Sipchem capital increase from 3,666,666,660
SAR to 7,333,333,320 SAR (“Capital increase”) through the issuance of 366,666,666
new ordinary shares, with a par value of 10 Saudi riyals per share (“New Sipchem
shares”) for the purpose of acquiring all the shares of the Sahara shareholders

31 Saudia Dairy and 11/06/2019  Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Foodstuff Co.

Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes

Vote on Auditors’ report for the year ended 2018 Yes

Vote on the distribution of cash dividends for first half of the year 2018 Yes

Vote on Board of Directors' recommendation to distribute cash dividends for the Yes

second half of 2018

Vote on authorizing the Board of Directors to distribute interim dividends on a semi- Yes
annual or quarterly basis for the fiscal year 2019
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Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the  Abstain
financial year ended 2018
Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the financial year ended 2018
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
32 AlHammadi Company 16/06/2019 Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes
for Development and
Investment
Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors’ report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the  Abstain
financial year ended 2018
Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates  Abstain
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
Vote on the Board of Directors 'decision to appoint Mr. Fahd bin Sulaiman Al- Yes
Nuhait to its membership of the Board of Directors (independent) from the date of
03/03/2019 until 21/06/2019
Vote on the Board of Directors 'decision to appoint Mr. Saad bin Abdul Mohsen Al- Yes
Hamidi for his membership in the Board of Directors (independent) from the date of
03/13/2019 21/06/2019
Vote on the election of members of the Board of Directors for the next session, Abstain
which will start from 06/22/2019 for a period of three years ending on 06/21/2022
Voting on the formation of the audit committee which starts from 06/22/2019 for a Yes
period of three years ending on 06/21/2022
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the financial year ended 2018
33 Bupa Arabia for 30/06/2019 Vote on Board of Directors Report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Cooperative Insurance
Co.
Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on Auditors’ report for the year ended 2018 Yes
Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates ~ Abstain
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
Vote on Board of Directors' recommendation to distribute cash dividends for the Yes
year ended 2018
Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the  Abstain
financial year ended 2018
Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the financial year ended 2018
Vote on authorizing the Board of Directors to distribute interim dividends on a semi- Yes
annual or quarterly basis for the fiscal year 2019
Vote on the Employee Shares Program (long-term incentive plan), and authorizing Yes
the Board of Directors to define the conditions for this program and its
implementation
Vote on the company'’s purchase of shares amounting to 17,743,567 Saudi riyals, and Yes
a maximum of 251,000 shares, with the aim of allocating them to the company’s
employees program (long-term incentives plan)
Vote on the election of members of the Board of Directors for the next term for a Abstain
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Voting on the formation of the audit committee which starts from 01/07/2019 to Abstain
30/06/2022
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Yes
34 Advanced 17/09/2019  Vote on the recommendation of the Board of Directors to increase the capital by Yes
Petrochemical Co. granting free shares to shareholders by one free share for every ten shares held in
order to match the company's capital to its assets and support its future investment
plans
Vote on the election of company board members from among the candidates for Abstain

board membership for the next session for a period of three years, which starts from
01/01/2019 and ends on 09/30/2022

Vote on amending Article (7) of the company's articles of association regarding the Yes
capital
Vote on the amendment of Article (20) of the company's articles of association Yes

regarding the remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors

Voting on the amendment of Article (22) of the company's articles of association Yes
related to Board meetings

Vote on the amendment of Article (30) of the articles of association of the company Yes
related to calling associations

Vote on the amendment of Article (38) of the company's articles of association Yes
regarding the formation of the committee

Vote on the amendment of Article (39) of the company's articles of association Yes
regarding the quorum of the committee meeting

Vote on the amendment of Article (41) of the company's articles of association Yes
related to the committee's reports
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Vote on the amendment of Article (45) of the company's articles of association Yes
regarding financial documents
Vote on the amendment of Article (46) of the company's articles of association Yes
regarding the distribution of profits
Vote on the amendment of Article (47) of the company's articles of association Yes
regarding profit eligibility
Vote on updating the review committee list Yes
Vote on the formation of the audit committee for the next session, which beginson  Abstain
10/01/2019 and ends on 09/30/2022
Vote on delegating the Board of Directors the authority of the Ordinary General Yes
Assembly with the license mentioned in Paragraph (1) of Article 71 of the Companies
Law, for a period of one year from the date of approval of the General Assembly
Vote on updating the remuneration policy for the members of the Board of Yes
Directors, its sub-committees and the executive management

35 Maharah Human 18/09/2019  Vote on the amendment of Article 2 of the company's articles of association in the Yes

Resources Co. company's name

Vote to delete Article 9 of the company's articles of association regarding share Yes
certificates
Vote to delete the Article 10 from the company's articles of association regarding Yes
preference shares
Vote on the amendment of Article 14 of the Articles of Association of the company in Yes
the shareholder register
Vote to amend the Article 19 of the company's articles of association in the vacant Yes
position
Vote on the amendment of Article 23 of the Company's articles of association Yes
regarding Board meetings
Vote on amending Article 24 of the company's articles of association regarding the Yes
quorum of the Board meeting
Vote on the amendment of Article 25 of the Company'’s articles of association Yes
regarding the Board's deliberations
Vote on the amendment of Article 26 of the company's articles of association Yes
regarding attending societies
Vote on amending Article 31 of the company's articles of association regarding Yes
calling for associations
Vote on the amendment of Article 33 of the Articles of Association of the company Yes
related to the quorum of the ordinary general assembly meeting
Vote on the amendment of Article 34 of the Articles of Association of the company Yes
related to the quorum of the extraordinary general assembly meeting
Vote to amend Article 39 of the company's articles of association regarding the Yes
formation of the committee
Vote on amending Article 46 of the company's articles of association in the financial Yes
documents
Vote on the amendment of Article 47 of the company's articles of association Yes
regarding the distribution of profits
Vote to delete Article 49 of the company's articles of association regarding the Yes
distribution of dividends for preferred shares
Vote to amend Article 53 of the company's articles of association Yes
Vote on adding Article 12 to the company's articles of association regarding buying Yes
and selling the company to its shares
Vote on amending the articles of articles of the company's articles of association to Yes
comply with all the amendments proposed
Vote on delegating the Board of Directors the authority of the Ordinary General Yes
Assembly with the license mentioned in Paragraph (1) of Article 71 of the Companies
Law, for a period of one year

36 Riyad Bank 30/09/2019 Vote on the election of the members of the Board of Directors for the next session, Abstain
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Vote on the formation of the review committee for the new session, which starts Abstain
from 10/31/2019 for a period of three years ending on 10/30/2022

37 Arabian Centers Co. 30/09/2019 Vote on Board of Directors Report for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2019 Yes
Vote on Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended Yes
March 31,2019
Vote on Auditors’ report for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2019 Yes
Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes

on the recommendation of the Audit Committee

Vote on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the  Abstain
fiscal year ended March 31, 2019

Vote on the rewards and compensation of the members of the Board of Directors Abstain
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2019

Vote on authorizing the Board of Directors to distribute interim dividends on a semi- Yes
annual or quarterly basis for the fiscal year March 31,2020

Vote on the Board's decision to appoint Mr. Omar bin Abdulaziz Al-Muhammadiasa  Abstain
member of the Board of Directors (non-executive) from 24/05/19 until 18/06/22

Vote on the Board's decision to appoint Mr. Omar Hader Al-Farsi as a member of the  Abstain
Board of Directors (independent) from 24/05/19 until 18/06/22

Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on delegating the Board of Directors the authority of the Ordinary General Yes

Assembly with the license mentioned in Paragraph (1) of Article 71 of the Companies
Law, for a period of one year

38 Saudia Dairy and 03/12/2019  Vote on the company's purchase of up to 2,749,055 of its shares and keeping it as Yes
Foodstuff Co. treasury shares, provided that financing the purchase process is from the company's
own resources
Vote to keep the shares purchased up to 5 years Yes
39 Sahara International 08/12/2019  Vote on the election of members of the Board of Directors for the next session, Abstain
Petrochemical Co. which begins on 10/12/2019 for a period of three years ending on 12/09/2022
Vote on the formation of the review committee for the new session, which starts Abstain

from 10/12/2019 to 09/12/2022

Vote on the recommendation of the Board of Directors to appoint Mr. Ayed Abstain
Muhammad Al-Qarni (independent member) as a member of the audit committee

Vote on the recommendation of the Board of Directors to appoint Eng Khaled Abstain
Abdullah Al-Zamil (non-executive member) as a member of the Board of Directors

Vote to increase the fees of the company auditor (KPMG) to examine, review and Abstain
audit the financial statements for the second, third, fourth and annual quarter of FY
2019 and the first quarter of FY 2020
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Vote on updating the review committee list Abstain
40 Banque Saudi Fransi 12/12/2019  Vote on the Board of Directors decision to appoint Professor Timothy Clark Collins Abstain
(independent member) on the Board of Directors from 24/04/19 until 31/12/2021
Vote on the amendment of Article (24) of the bank’s articles of association related to Yes
the chairman, vice president and secretary
Vote to amend Article (5.3.1) of the Social Responsibility Policy Yes
Vote on the mandate of the Board of Directors to approve social responsibility Yes
programs annually
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on authorizing the Board of Directors with the validity of the license mentioned Yes
in Paragraph (1) of Article 71 of the Companies Law, for a period of one year
Vote on the criteria for participation of a member of the Board of Directors in a work Yes
that would compete with the bank or compete with it in one of the branches of its
activity
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on the appointment of the auditor of the company from among the candidates Yes
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
41 Mouwasat Medical 16/12/2019  Vote on the election of members of the company’s board of directors for the next Abstain
Services Co. term beginning on 01/04/2020 and for a period of three years ending on 01/03/2023
Vote on the formation of the audit committee for the next session, which starts from  Abstain
01/04/2020 for a period of three years ending on 01/03/2023
Vote on updating the corporate governance regulations Yes
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
Vote on related party transactions Abstain
42 Saudi British Bank 18/12/2019  Vote on the election of members of the Board of Directors for the next session, Abstain
which begins on 01/01/2020 for a period of three years ending on 31/12/2022
Vote on the formation of the review committee for the new session, which begins on  Abstain
01/01/2020 for a period of three years and ends on 31/12/2022
Vote on the decision of the Board of Directors to appoint Mrs. Lubna Bint Sulaiman Abstain
Al Olayan to the Board of Directors (non-executive member) from 16/06/2019 to
complete the session of the Board until the date of the end of the current session on
31/12/2019, in accordance with the merger agreement
Vote on the Board's decision to appoint Mr. Ahmed bin Farid Al-Awlaki to the Board Abstain
of Directors (an independent member) from 16/06/2019 to complete the Board’s
session until the date of the end of the current session on 31/12/2019, in accordance
with the merger agreement
Vote on the Board's decision to appoint Mrs. Maria Ramos to the Board of Directors ~ Abstain
(an independent member) from 16/06/2019 to complete the Board’s session until the
date of the end of the current session on 31/12/2019 in accordance with the merger
agreement
Vote on the Board of Directors 'decision to appoint Mr. Martin Powell to the Board Abstain
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5. Fund Board Meeting

Held on March 19, 2019
Topics Discussed

Approval of minutes for meeting held on September 25, 2018;

Secretary of the Board informed that Bader AlGhanim was registered as Chairman of the Fund's Board of Directors with the
CMA. As for the appointment of another employee in the Operations Department, several candidates were interviewed, and
an appointment shall be made soon;

Board reviewed the performance reports of Global Saudi Equity Fund for the months of December 2018 and February 2019.
Fund Manager explained some of the points mentioned in the reports and discussed about the performance during the last
period compared to their respective benchmarks. The discussion also tackled some of the points related to the stock and cash
weights available in the Fund as well as addressed some of the risk measures and indicators in the reports. The Board also
discussed the moves made by the regional markets during the year. The Chairman of the Board informed the members of the
Fund's achievement in the 5th position among investment funds in the Saudi market, as at the end of December. The Chairman
of the Board thanked the Fund Manager of the Fund for the outstanding performance;

Board reviewed the audited financial statements of Global Saudi Equity Fund as at 31 December 2018. Fund Manager pointed
out that there were no reservations made by External Auditor on the financial statements and confirmed that they were
uploaded on the company's website and Tadawul website and that the same will be available to the unitholders upon request.
Financial statements were approved by the Board members;

It was agreed to coordinate the dates of future meetings with the members by e-mail with a proposal of 2 indicative dates;
Board approved the annual report prepared according to Annex 5 of the Investment Funds Regulations and approved an
agreement on the terms of services for the provision of dealing services signed between Global Investment House Saudia and
JP Morgan Saudi Arabia;

Compliance and Anti-Money Laundering Manager confirmed the absence of any error in the work of the Fund's investment
since the date of the last meeting of the Board of Directors of the Fund and noted the continued monitoring of the work of
the Fund on daily basis;

Compliance Manager informed the Board that quarterly reports and financial statements were uploaded on the company's
website and Tadawul website;

The Compliance Manager informed the Board that the information memorandum was updated after obtaining the approval
of the Authority to amend the members of the Fund’s Board of Directors and the Company'’s Board of Directors;

The Compliance Manager informed the Board that the Capital Market Authority has updated the forms of the monthly and
quarterly reports, and they will start as of March reports;

Compliance and Anti-Money Laundering Manager conducted an audit of the Board's decisions in accordance with the
regulations of the Capital Market Authority. There were no reservations or observations.

Held on October 16, 2019
Topics Discussed

Approval of minutes for meeting held on March 19, 2019;

Secretary of the Board informed that an additional employee was appointed to the Operations Department in June;

Board reviewed the performance report of the Global Saudi Equity Fund for June 2019 and September 2019. Fund Manager
explained some points in the aforementioned reports and talked about the Fund's performance during the Ist and 2nd quarter
period as the Fund’s performance was excellent until the Fund's performance decreased in the 3rd quarter, with the market
declining for reasons of Saudi stock market joining the global emerging market indices. The discussion also tackled some of
the points related to the stock and cash weights available in the Fund as well as addressed some of the risk measures and
indicators in the reports. The Board also discussed the moves made by the regional markets during the year. Also, Saudi
Aramco'’s IPO in the Saudi market and the Fund's plan were discussed, where the Chairman clarified that in the event of the
offering, the subscription price would become clear and that the Fund's strategy is long-term investment in Saudi Aramco;
Board reviewed the audited financial statements of Global Saudi Equity Fund (which had been approved by e-mail by the Fund
Board of Directors) as of June 30, 2018. The Chairman pointed out that there were no reservations made by External Auditor
on the financial statements and confirmed that they were uploaded on the company’s website and Tadawul website and that
the same will be available to the unitholders upon request;

It was agreed to coordinate the dates of future meetings with the members by e-mail with a proposal of 2 indicative dates;
The Board approved the semi-annual report, which was prepared according to Annex 5 of the Investment Funds Regulations.
The Chairman informed the members of the Fund's Board that KAMCO has acquired the remaining 30% shares of Global
Investment House, and the merger will be completed by the end of October 2019. After that, the procedures for changing the
Global Investment House Saudia will be initiated;

Compliance and Anti-Money Laundering Manager confirmed the absence of any error in the work of the Fund's investment
since the date of the last meeting of the Board of Directors of the Fund and noted the continued monitoring of the work of
the Fund on daily basis;

Compliance Manager informed the Board that quarterly reports and semi-annual financial statements were uploaded on the
company'’s website and Tadawul website;

The Compliance Manager informed the Board that the information memorandum was updated to amend the members of the
Company's Board of Directors;

Compliance and Anti-Money Laundering Manager conducted an audit of the Board's decisions in accordance with the
regulations of the Capital Market Authority. There were no reservations or observations.

Global Investment House Saudi
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c¢) FUND MANAGER

1.  Name and address of the fund manager
Global Investment House - Saudia
P.O. Box 66930
Riyadh 11586
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

2. Names and addresses of sub-manager and/or investment adviser (if any)
Not applicable

3. Review of Investment Activities

At Global Saudia, investment decision making is a fundamental research driven process in order to generate higher risk-adjusted returns for
unitholders. As an investment strategy, the Fund Manager uses a top down economic and sector overlay along with bottom up company
analysis.

2019 was marked by two halves. As of April, the market rallied 20% on the potential Tadawul inclusion in MSCI and FTSE Emerging Markets
Index in May and September of 2019. However, markets gave up almost all the returns post tanker attacks in May and Aramco oil facilities
attack in September coupled with lingering trade war issues. Aramco IPO in December propelled liquidity in the market and the index closed
+7.2% for the year despite earnings growth flattering amid higher bank provisions and lower petrochemical prices. Despite this backdrop, the
Government announced a healthy budget with focus on capital and social spending supported by non-oil sources of income.

In light of the above, the Fund was positioned to benefit from the structural economic changes coupled with investment in companies supported
by strong operations and healthy balance sheet.

4. Fund Performance

Global Saudi Equity Fund had a positive return of 10.01% as of December 31, 2019 vis-a-vis 7.19% for the benchmark. The alpha can be attributed
to the focus on evolving economic and market dynamics and likewise portfolio construction with resilient operating companies. Since
inception, the Fund has delivered an annualized return of 9.92% vis-a-vis 5.26% for the benchmark for the corresponding period.

5. Material Changes on the T&Cs
e The creation of a new unit class i.e. Class B, so that the Fund contains two units, Class A and Class B.

There was no other information that would enable unitholders to make an informed judgment about the fund’s activities during 2019.
Global Saudi Equity Fund doesn’t invest substantially in other investment funds.

There was no special commission received by the fund manager during 2019.

The Fund Manager believes there are no other data and other information required by the IFRs to be included in this report.

0P No

d. CUSTODIAN

1. Name and address of custodian
HSBC Saudi Arabia
2nd Floor, HSBC Building, Olaya Road
7267 Olaya, Al Murooj,
Riyadh 12283-2255,
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

2. Duties and responsibilities
Custodian is a service provider to the Fund in line with article 22 to 29 of Investment Funds Regulations issued by the Capital Market
Authority. Below are the brief responsibilities of the custodian:
- - Opening of segregated accounts for the Fund in the name of the custodian for the benefit of Global Saudi Equity Fund.
- Safekeeping and periodic reconciliation of assets under custody
- Movements of Funds for Fund's investment and Operational purposes based on Fund Manager Instructions
- Settlements of trades after execution and handling corporate action in the Fund portfolio based on Fund Manager Instructions
- Providing periodic statements to the Fund’s managers and the auditors.
- Complying with Client Money rules and Investment Account Instructions issued by the CMA.

3. Statement of opinion
a. a)issued, transferred and redeemed the units in accordance with the provisions of the Investment Funds Regulations and the Fund’s
Terms and Conditions;
b) valued and calculated the price of units in accordance with the provisions of the Investment Funds Regulations, the Fund's Terms and
Conditions and the Information Memorandum;
c) breached any of the investment restrictions, limitations and borrowing powers applicable to the Investment Funds Regulations.

The responsibilities of the custodian do not include the expression of these opinions.

Global Investment House Saudi
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e. AUDITOR

1.

2)

Name and address of Auditor.

KPMG Al Fozan & Partners

KPMG Tower, Salahudeen Al Ayoubi Road
P O Box 92876, Riyadh 11663

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Statement of Compliance;

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as endorsed in
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants
("SOCPA") and to comply with the applicable provisions of the Investment Fund Regulations issued by Capital Market Authority, the Fund'’s
Terms and Conditions and the Information Memorandum.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Fund as at
31 December 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by the Saudi
Organization for Certified Public Accountants (“SOCPA"), and comply with the applicable provisions of the Investment Funds Regulations
issued by Capital Market Authority, the Fund's Terms and Conditions and the Information Memorandum.

FUND MANAGER INVESTMENT
Fund Manager's investment in the Fund as of December 31, 2019 was SAR 12,900,704.71 (2.06% of the NAV)

Global Investment House Saudi
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Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Unitholders of Global Saudi Equity Fund

We have audited the financial statements of Global Saudi Equity Fund (‘the Fund”), managed by Global
Investment House Saudia (the “Fund Manager”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in net assets (equity) attributable to the
unitholders and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, comprising significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Fund as at 31 December 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as endorsed in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements endorsed by the Saudi Qrganization for Certified Public
Accountants (“SOCPA”), and comply with the applicable provisions of the Investment Funds Regulations
issued by Capital Market Authority, the Fund's Terms and Conditions and the Information Memorandum.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISA”) that are endorsed in
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Fund
in accordance with the professional code of conduct and ethics that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of the Fund Manager and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial

The Fund Manager is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and
pronouncements endorsed by SOCPA, and compliance with the applicable provisions of the Investment Funds
Regulations issued by the Capital Market Authority, the Fund's Terms and Conditions and the Information
Memorandum and for such internal control as the Fund Manager determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Fund Manager is responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Fund Manager either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, the Fund Board, are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial reporting
process.

KPMG Al Fozan & Partners Certified Public Accountants, a
registered company in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, and a non-
partner member firm of the KPMG network of independent firms
affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity.
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To the Unitholders of Global Saudi Equity Fund (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. ‘Reasonable assurance’ is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Fund’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Fund Manager.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the Fund Manager's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, then we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit of Global Saudi Equity Fund (“the Fund”), managed by Global Investment House
Saudia (the “Fund Manager”).

For KPMG Al Fozan
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GLOBAL SAUDI EQUITY FUND
An open-ended mutual fund

(MANAGED BY GLOBAL INVESTMENT HOUSE SAUDIA)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2019
(Saudi Arabian Riyals)

Notes
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 10
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 11
Receivables from broker 9
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Payables to broker 9
Management fee payable 12

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS (EQUITY) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
UNITHOLDERS

Units in issue (numbers)

Net asset (equity) value per unit

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
110,858,618 22,861,186
510,140,763 548,933,200

29,457,225 4,268,322
650,456,606 576,062,708
21,670,254 4,028,388
2,773,554 2,582,792
329,112 400,090
24,772,920 7,011,270
625,683,686 569,051,438
2,226,531 2,227,630
281.0128 255.4515

The accompanying notes 1 to 18 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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GLOBAL SAUDI EQUITY FUND
An open-ended mutual fund

(MANAGED BY GLOBAL INVESTMENT HOUSE SAUDIA)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(Saudi Arabian Riyals)

For the year

For the year

ended 31 ended 31
December December
Notes 2019 2018
INCOME

Net gain from investments 111 45,790,660 69,352,378
Dividend income 24,471,127 19,890,150
Other income 1,315 126
Total income 70,263,102 89,242,654

EXPENSES
Management fee 12 10,985,157 9,720,527
Other expenses 13 2,258,338 1,893,534
Total expenses 13,243,495 11,614,061
Net income for the year 57,019,607 77,628,593
Other comprehensive income for the year -- --
Total comprehensive income for the year 57,019,607 77,628,593

The accompanying notes 1 to 18 form an integral part of these financial statements.



GLOBAL SAUDI EQUITY FUND
An open-ended mutual fund
(MANAGED BY GLOBAL INVESTMENT HOUSE SAUDIA)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the year ended 31 December 2019

(Saudi Arabian Riyals)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income for the year

Adjustment to reconcile net income for the year to net cash

generated from operating activities:

Net gain from investments

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Purchase of investments at fair value through profit or loss
Proceeds from sale of investments at fair value through

profit or loss

Receivables from broker

Payables to broker

Management fee payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Net cash generated from operating activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipt from subscription of units
Payment against redemption of units
Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes For the year

For the year

ended 31 ended 31
December 2019 December 2018
57,019,607 77,628,593
11.1 (45,790,660) (69,352,378)
11,228,947 8,276,215
(1,029,015,105) (1,092,968,902)
1,113,598,202 1,098,525,940
(25,188,903) 8,726,058
17,641,866 (4,795,133)
190,762 405,729
(70,978) 43,199
88,384,791 18,213,106
914,818
(1,302,177) (10,611,955)
(387,359) (10,611,955)
87,997,432 7,601,151
22,861,186 15,260,035
110,858,618 22,861,186

The accompanying notes 1 to 18 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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GLOBAL SAUDI EQUITY FUND
An open-ended mutual fund

(MANAGED BY GLOBAL INVESTMENT HOUSE SAUDIA)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (EQUITY)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE UNITHOLDERS
For the year ended 31 December 2019

(Saudi Arabian Riyals)

Net assets (equity) attributable to the Unitholders at the
beginning of the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Contributions by the Unitholders:

Issuance of units during the year
Redemption of units during the year
Net redemption by the Unitholders

Net assets (equity) attributable to the Unitholders at the
end of the year

Units transactions (numbers):

Units in issuance at the beginning of the year
Units Issued during the year

Units redeemed during the year

Net change from unit transactions

Units at the end of the year

For the year For the year
ended 31 ended 31
December December
2019 2018
569,051,438 502,034,800
57,019,607 77,628,593
914,818 --
(1,302,177) (10,611,955)
(387,359) (10,611,955)
625,683,686 569,051,438

For the year

For the year

ended 31 ended 31
December December
2019 2018
2,227,630 2,273,987
3,258 --
(4,357) (46,357)
(1,099) (46,357)
2,226,531 2,227,630

The accompanying notes 1 to 18 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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GLOBAL SAUDI EQUITY FUND
An open-ended mutual fund
(MANAGED BY GLOBAL INVESTMENT HOUSE SAUDIA)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2019

REPORTING ENTITY

Global Saudi Equity Fund (the “Fund”) is an open-ended Saudi Riyal denominated investment fund
created by agreement between Global Investment House Saudia (the “Fund Manager”) and
investors (the “Unitholders”) in the Fund. The objective of the Fund is long-term capital growth
through investment in equities traded on the Saudi stock market.

The Fund was established on 21 Dhul Qadah 1429H (corresponding to 19 November 2008) per
approval from the Capital Market Authority (“CMA”) and commenced its operations on 28 January
20009.

The Fund appointed HSBC Securities Limited to act as its custodian, administrator and registrar.
During 2010, the Fund transferred the responsibility of registrar and administration to the Fund
Manager. HSBC Securities Limited continues to act as custodian of the Fund. The related fees are
paid by the Fund.

In dealing with the Unitholders, the Fund Manager considers the Fund as an independent accounting
unit. Accordingly, the Fund Manager prepares separate financial statements for the Fund.

REGULATING AUTHORITY

The Fund is governed by the Investment Fund Regulations (the “Regulations”) issued by the CMA
on 3 Dhul Hijja 1427H (corresponding to 24 December 2006) and amended by the Capital Market
Authority on 16 Sha’aban 1437H (corresponding to 23 May 2016), detailing requirements for all
funds within the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The Amended Regulations came into effect from 6
Safar 1438 H (corresponding to 6 November 2016).

SUBSCRIPTION / REDEMPTION OF UNITS

The Fund is open for subscriptions / redemptions with a cutoff time of 12:00 pm on Sunday and
Tuesday (each a “Dealing Day”). The net assets attributable to the Unitholders of the Fund’s
portfolio is published on Monday and Wednesday. The net assets attributable to the Unitholders
of the Fund for the purpose of subscription / redemption of units is determined by dividing the
net assets attributable to the Unitholders of the Fund (fair value of the Fund’s assets minus the
Fund’s liabilities) by the total number of the Fund’s units outstanding on the relevant dealing day.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards
and pronouncements endorsed by Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants
(“SOCPA”) and to comply with the applicable provisions of the Investment Fund Regulations
issued by Capital Market Authority, the Fund’s Terms and Conditions and the Information
Memorandum.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for measurement
of investments at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") at fair value, using the accrual basis
of accounting and the going concern concept.

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY
These financial statements have been presented in SAR, which is also the functional and

presentation currency of the Fund. All financial information presented has been rounded to the
nearest SAR.
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USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates
are recognized prospectively.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Foreign currency
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into SAR at the exchange rate at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into SAR at the
exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency shall be translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.

Foreign currency differences arising on translation are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income as net foreign exchange gains or losses, except for those arising on financial instruments at
FVTPL, which are recognised as a component of net gain from financial instruments at FVTPL.

Revenue Recognition

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income on the date on which
the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. For
quoted equity securities, this is usually the ex-dividend date. Dividend income from equity
securities designated as at FVTPL is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in a
separate line item.

Net gain from financial instruments at FVTPL

Net gain from financial instruments at FVTPL includes all realised and unrealised fair value changes
and excludes dividend income. Net realised gain from financial instruments at FVTPL is calculated
using the weighted average cost method.

Zakat and income tax

Under the current system of zakat and income tax in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the Fund is
exempt from paying any zakat and income tax. Zakat and income tax are considered to be the
obligation of the Unitholders and are not provided in these financial statements.

The Value Added Tax (VAT) applicable for fees and expenses is recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income under other expenses.

Net asset value
Net asset value per unit, disclosed in the statement of financial position, is calculated by dividing
the net assets of the Fund by the number of units in issue at year-end.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provisions

Provisions are recognized whenever there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Subscription and redemption of units
Units subscribed and redeemed are recorded at the net asset value (NAV) per unit on the dealing
day for which the subscription request and redemption applications are received.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents represents cash maintained with the custodian held under an omnibus
account with a local bank, and are available to the Fund without any restrictions.

Accrued expenses
Liabilities are recognized for amounts currently due to be paid in the future for goods or services
received, whether billed by the suppliers or not.

Trade date accounting

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized in the
statement of financial position on the trade date i.e. the date at which the Fund becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Fees and other expenses
Fees and other expenses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income as the related
services are received.

Financial assets and liabilities

Classification of financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified and measured at amortized cost, FVOCI or
FVTPL.

Financial Asset at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is

not designated as at FVTPL.:

o the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The financial instruments not measured at fair value are short-term financial assets whose carrying
amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value. The Fund Manager classifies cash and cash
equivalents, receivable from broker and dividend receivables as financial assets at amortized cost.

Financial Asset at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI””)

A financial asset is measured at fair value through OCI only if it meets both of the following

conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

¢ it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

e its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Fund Manager may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Classification of financial assets (Continued)

Financial Asset at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI’") (Continued)

The Fund does not have any debt or equity instruments classified at FVVOCI and thus this does not
apply to the Fund.

Financial Asset at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”")
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets that are held for trading and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis
are measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows nor held
both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets. Investments in equity securities
are classified under this category.

Reclassifications
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the year after
the Fund changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Classification of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities includes management fee payable, payable to broker, accrued expenses and
other current liabilities and are classified as financial liabilities at amortized cost.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are initially recognized on the trade date, which
the date on which the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Other
financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the date on which they are originated.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are initially recognized at fair value, with
transaction costs recognized in statement of income. Financial assets or financial liabilities not
classified as FVTPL are initially recognized at fair value plus / (minus) transaction costs that are
directly attributable to their acquisition or issue.

Net gains from financial assets at FVTPL includes all realized and unrealized fair value changes
and foreign exchange differences, but excludes commission and dividend income. Net realized
gain / loss from financial assets at FVTPL is calculated using the average cost method.

Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost are initially measured at fair value including
direct and incremental transaction costs, and subsequently measured at amortized cost. The
amortized cost is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured on
initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using
the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount recognized and the
maturity amount, minus any allowance for impairment.

Derecognition

The Fund derecognizes a financial asset (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or a part of
a group of similar financial assets) when the contractual rights to the cash flow from the asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Fund neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financial asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or
the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognized) and the sum of (i) the
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed), and (ii)
any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) is
recognized in profit or loss. Any interest in such transferred financial assets that is created or
retained by the Fund is recognized as a separate asset or liability.

The Fund may enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its statement of
financial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets or a portion of them. If all or substantially all of the risks and rewards are
retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognized. Transfers of assets with retention of all
or substantially all of the risks and rewards include sale and repurchase transactions.

For transactions in which the Fund neither retains nor transfers substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of a financial asset and where it retains control over the asset, the Fund
continues to recognize the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent
to which it is exposed to changes in the value of the transferred asset.

The Fund derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when, and only when, the Fund has a legally enforceable right to offset the
amounts and intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRS, or for gains
and losses arising from a group of similar transactions such as in the Fund’s trading activity.

Fair value measurement

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Fund has access at that date. The fair value of a
liability reflects its non-performance risk.

The Fund measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that
instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. The Fund
measures instruments quoted in an active market as per the official closing price in the related stock
exchange where the instrument is traded.

NEW STANDARDS

New IFRS standards, IFRIC interpretations and amendments thereof, adopted by the Fund

The following new standards, amendments and revisions to existing standards, which were issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), have been effective from 1 January
2019 and accordingly adopted by the Fund, as applicable:
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NEW STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Standards / Amendments Description

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

IAS 28 Long term interests in associates and joint ventures
IAS 19 Plan amendments, curtailments or settlements
IFRS 3,11 and IAS 12, 23 Annual Improvements to IFRS 2015 - 2017 cycle

The adoption of the amended standards and interpretations applicable to the Fund did not have
any significant impact on these financial statements.

Standards issued but not yet effective

A number of amendments and standards are effective for the period beginning on or after 1
January 2019 and earlier application is permitted; however, the Fund has not early applied these
new amendments and standards in preparing these financial statements as these do not have a
material impact on the Fund’s financial statements.

The following new or amended standards are not expected to have a significant impact on the
Fund’s financial statements:
Effective from periods
beginning on or after

Standards / Interpretation Description the following date
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a business 1 January 2020
Amendments to IAS 1 & IAS 8 Definition of material 1 January 2020
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2022

RECEIVABLES FROM AND PAYABLES TO BROKER

This represents receivables from broker and payables to broker for sale and purchase trades that
were executed immediately before the end of the year.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 December 31 December
Note 2019 2018
Cash in trading account 10.1 110,858,618 22,861,186

This balance is maintained with the custodian, and is used to conduct investment transactions. Cash
is held in a client account with a local bank having an investment grade credit rating.

INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

31 December 31 December
2019 2018

Investments measured at fair value through profit or loss 510,140,763 548,933,200

10
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INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

Below are the details of net gain from investments for the year ended 31 December 2019:

Realized gain on investments at fair value through profit or loss
Unrealized gain on investments at fair value through profit or loss

2019 201
25,122,093 7,672,381
20,668,567 61,679,997
45,790,660 69,352,378

Investments at fair value through profit or loss are investments in equity securities that are held for
trading and listed on Saudi Stock Exchange (“Tadawul”). Following is the sectoral exposures as at

reporting date:
31 December 2019:

Sectors

Banks and financial services

Retail

Energy and utilities

Telecommunication and information
technology

Petrochemical industries

Health care equipment and services

Real estate development

Industrials

Total

31 December 2018:

Sectors

Banks and financial services

Petrochemical industries

Retail

Telecommunication and information
technology

Energy and utilities

Real estate development

Health care equipment and services

Total

% of Fair Fair Carrying Unrealised
value value value gain / (loss)
47.89 244,325,763 228,792,190 15,533,573
17.46 89,071,000 80,526,536 8,544,464
12.09 61,687,500 62,782,931  (1,095,431)
8.46 43,142,000 43,675,790 (533,790)
6.94 35,383,500 37,261,413 (1,877,913)
3.01 15,400,000 14,188,049 1,211,951
2.29 11,660,000 11,702,613 (42,613)
1.86 9,471,000 10,542,674 (1,071,674)
100 510,140,763 489,472,196 20,668,567

% of Fair Fair Carrying Unrealised
value value Value gain / (loss)
56.81 311,841,300 262,238,563 49,602,737
25.26 138,654,900 133,858,533 4,796,367
7.00 38,384,000 34,828,209 3,555,791
4.78 26,258,000 23,593,924 2,664,076
2.90 15,920,000 15,383,571 536,429
1.64 9,020,000 8,620,879 399,121
1.61 8,855,000 8,729,524 125,476
100 548,933,200 487,253,203 61,679,997

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties of the Fund include the Fund Manager, Parent of the Fund Manager and the Fund
Board. In the ordinary course of its activities, the Fund transacts with the Fund Manager (refer

note 1).

Management fee

The Fund pays a management fee to the Fund Manager calculated at an annual rate of 1.75% of
the net assets (equity) value accrued on a daily basis.

11
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TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

Administration fee
The Fund also pays an administration fee to the Fund Manager calculated at an annual rate of
0.13% of the net assets (equity) value accrued on a daily basis.

In addition to the transactions disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, transactions with
related parties for the years ended 31 December are as follows:

Related party Nature of transactions 2019 2018
The Fund Manager — Management fees excluding VAT 10,985,157 9,720,527
Global Investment House . . .
Saudia v "¢ Administration fees excluding VAT 816,254 722,124
The Fund Board Meetings fees 10,000 10,000

The Unitholders’ transactions for the year ended 31 December are as follows:

Related party Nature of transactions 2019 2018
--Numbers--
The Fund Manager — Global
Investment House Saudia Redemption of units -- (45,907)
Parent of the Fund Manager - Redemption of units (4,357) (450)
KAMCO Investment Kuwait* Subscription of units 3,258 -

Outstanding balances with related parties as at reporting date are as follows:

31 December 31 December

Related party Nature of balances 2019 2018
The Fund Manager - Management fee payab|e 2,773,544 2,582,792
Global Investment House

Saudia Administration fee payable 206,036 191,651
The Fund Board Fund Board fee 10,000 15,000

The Unitholders’” account as at reporting date included the following:

31 December 31 December

Units held by: 2019 2018
--Numbers--

The Fund Manager 45,908 45,908

Parent of the Fund Manager - KAMCO Investment

Kuwait* 2,170,623 2,171,722

The Fund Board member 10,000 10,000

* These investments have been made by the Parent of the Fund Manager, on behalf of their clients.

OTHER EXPENSES
For the year ended 31

December
2019 2018
Administration fee (note 12) 816,254 722,124
Custody fee (note 13.1) 719,925 532,401
Others (note 13.2) 722,159 639,009

2,258,338 1,893,534
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OTHER EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
Until 31 January 2019, custodian fee was accrued on the portfolio value of the Fund on a daily

basis, and payable on a monthly basis, in accordance with the following and was subject to the
respective annual minimum fee.

Portfolio value of the Fund Rate Percentage (%)
USD 0 to 50 million 0.15
USD 50 to 100 million 0.135
USD 100 to 200 million 0.12
USD 200 million and above 0.10

From 1 February 2019, custodian fee percentage is revised, and a flat rate of 0.13% is being
accrued on the portfolio value of the fund on a daily basis and payable on a monthly basis, and is
subject to the respective monthly minimum fee.

Trade transactions on the Saudi stock exchange are executed through the Fund’s custodian.
This includes VAT on fees and expenses amounting to SAR 629,643 (2018: SAR 543,207).
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

When available, the Fund measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted prices in an
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or
liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an on-
going basis. The Fund measures instruments quoted in an active market as per the official closing
price in the related stock exchange where the instrument is traded.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Fund uses valuation techniques that
maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The
chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into
account in pricing a transaction.

The Fund recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting year during which the change has occurred.

Valuation models:

The fair values of financial instruments that are traded in active markets are based on prices
obtained directly from an exchange on which the instruments are traded or obtained from a broker
that provides an unadjusted quoted price from an active market for identical instruments. For all
other financial instruments, the Fund determines fair values using other valuation techniques.

For financial instruments that trade infrequently and have little price transparency, fair value is
less objective and requires varying degrees of judgement depending on liquidity, uncertainty of
market factors, pricing assumptions and other risks affecting the specific instrument.

The Fund measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (CONTINUED)

Valuation models (Continued):
Level 1. Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
instruments.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued
using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical
or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation
techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the
valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs
have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that
are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments but for which significant unobservable
adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.

The Fund values equity securities that are traded on an approved stock exchange at their last
reported prices. To the extent that equity securities are actively traded and valuation adjustments
are not applied, they are categorized in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy, hence the Fund’s assets
recorded at fair value have been categorized based on fair value hierarchy Level 1.

Listed equity securities are valued using quoted prices in an active market for an identical
instrument (Level 1 measurement).

Carrying amounts and fair value

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at the reporting date by the
level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized. The amounts
are based on the values recognized in the statement of financial position.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Fund has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above. The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair
values of financial instruments including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include
fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the
carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value:

31 December 2019

———————————————— Fair value--------------
Financial assets at fair Carrying
value Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investments at fair value
through profit or loss 510,140,763 510,140,763 - - 510,140,763

31 December 2018

———————————————— Fair value---------------
Financial assets at fair Carrying
value Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Investments at fair value
through profit or loss 548,933,200 548,933,200 --

- 548,933,200

There were no inter-level transfers during the year.
14
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposure

Risk management is an integral part of the investment and the operational process. Risk
management can be distinguished in financial risk management, operational risk management
and independent risk measurement. Financial risk management encompasses all elements of the
investment process. A number of risk management systems allow the Fund to notice any
deviations from intended positioning and targets. Operational risk management encompasses the
four areas of potential losses: processes, systems, people and external events.

The Operations department is primarily responsible for identifying and controlling risks. The
Fund Board supervises the Investment Manager and is ultimately responsible for the overall risk
management of the Fund.

The Fund has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments:

a) credit risk

b) liquidity risk

C) market risks; and
d) operational risk.

Risk management framework

Financial instruments and associated risks

The Fund primarily aims to invest in a diversified portfolio consisting of listed equities in Saudi
Arabia. The nature and extent of the financial instruments outstanding at the Statement of
Financial Position date and the risk management policies employed by the Fund are discussed
below.

The Portfolio Management Team has been given discretionary authority to manage the assets in
line with the Fund’s investment objectives. Compliance with the target asset allocations and the
composition of the portfolio are monitored by the portfolio management team on a weekly basis.

In instances where the portfolio has diverged from target asset allocations, the Portfolio Manager
is obliged to take actions to rebalance the portfolio in line with the established targets, within
prescribed time limits.

The Fund uses different methods to measure and manage the various types of risk to which it is
exposed; these methods are explained below.

Market risk

‘Market Risk’ is the risk that changes in market prices — such as commission rates, foreign
exchange rates, equity prices and credit spreads — will affect the Fund’s income or the fair value
of its holdings in financial instruments.

The Fund’s strategy for the management of market risk is driven by the Fund’s investment
objective as per the Fund’s terms and conditions.

The Fund’s market risk is managed by the Fund Manager in accordance with the policies and

procedures in place. The Fund’s market positions are monitored on a daily basis by the portfolio
manager.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Market risk (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk/currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises as the value of future transactions, recognized monetary assets and
monetary liabilities denominated in other currencies fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Fund does not invest in financial instruments or enter into transactions that are
denominated in currencies other than its functional currency, hence, is not directly exposed to this
risk.

Commission rate risk

Commission rate risk arises from the possibility that the changes in commission rates will affect
either the fair values or the future cash flows of financial instruments. The Fund Manager
monitors positions daily to ensure maintenance of positions within established gap limits, if any.
The Fund is not subject to significant direct commission rate risk on its investments.

(iii) Other price risk

(b)

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value of the financial instrument will fluctuate as a result
of changes in market prices (other than those arising from commission rate risk or currency risk),
whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment or its issuer or factors affecting all
instruments traded in the market. Material investments within the portfolio are managed on an
individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are approved by the Fund Manager.

The fair value of individual securities may fluctuate as a result of e.g. company specific news,
broad market movements, interest rate risk or foreign currency movements. The Fund Manager
continuously monitors the (potential) determinants of the value of the securities held and the total
portfolio value. As such, risk management is an integral part of investment management process
which comprises security selection and portfolio construction. The exposures in various stocks,
economic sectors and country economic outlook are frequently monitored, measured and
managed against the norms which have been defined for those exposures.

All of the Fund's listed investments in equity securities that are listed on Saudi Stock Exchange
(Tadawul). For such investments classified as held for trading, a 10% increase in the Saudi Stock
Exchange (Tadawul) at the reporting date would have increased equity by SAR 51.01 million; an
equal change in the opposite direction would have decreased equity by SAR 51.01 million.

The Fund Manager endeavors to minimize the risk through diversification across various sectors
of the Saudi stock market. Further, the Fund Manager has established risk guidelines to manage
its equity price risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation or commitment that it has entered into with the Fund, resulting in a financial loss to the
Fund. It arises principally from cash and cash equivalents, receivable from broker and dividend
receivables. The Fund’s policy over credit risk is to minimize its exposure to counterparties with
perceived higher risk of default by dealing only with counterparties that meet the certain credit
standards.

The Fund’s activities may give rise to settlement risk. “Settlement risk” is the risk of loss due to
the failure of an entity to honor its obligations to deliver cash, securities or other assets as
contractually agreed. For the majority of transactions, the Fund mitigates this risk by conducting
settlements through a broker to ensure that a trade is settled only when both parties have fulfilled
their contractual settlement obligations.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (Continued)

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
Cash and cash equivalents 110,858,618 22,861,186
Receivable from broker 29,457,225 4,268,322
Total exposure to credit risk 140,315,843 27,129,508

Analysis of credit quality

The Fund’s cash and cash equivalents are held with the custodian under an omnibus account with
a local bank having sound credit ratings. Credit risk relating to unsettled transactions is considered
small due to the short settlement period involved and the high credit quality of the broker used.
The portfolio management team monitors the financial position of the broker on a regular basis.
The Fund has not offset any financial assets and financial liabilities in the statement of financial
position. The Fund does not have enforceable master netting or similar arrangements that cover
similar financial instruments.

Allowance for impairment
The Fund has investment in only equity securities classified as FVTPL. Hence, no impairment
allowance is recorded in these financial statements as per IFRS 9.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to
settle its obligations in full as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially
disadvantageous.

The Fund’s terms and conditions provide for subscription and redemption of units on every
valuation day and it is, therefore, exposed to the liquidity risk of meeting unitholder redemptions
on these days. The Fund’s financial liabilities primarily consist of management fee payable and
payable to broker, which are expected to be settled within one month from the statement of
financial position date.

The Fund Manager monitors liquidity requirements by ensuring that sufficient funds are available
to meet any commitments as they arise, either through new subscriptions or liquidation of the
investment portfolio.

The Fund’s investments in listed securities are considered to be readily realizable because they
are actively traded on Tadawul.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a variety of causes associated
with the processes, technology and infrastructure supporting the Fund’s activities, either
internally or externally at the Fund’s service provider and from external factors other than credit,
liquidity, currency and market risks such as those arising from the legal and regulatory
requirements.

The Fund’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses

and damage to its reputation with achieving its investment objective of generating returns to
Unitholders.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Operational risk (Continued)

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of control over operational
risks rests with the Risk Management Team. This responsibility is supported by the development
of overall standards for the management of operational risk, which encompasses the controls and
processes at the service providers and the establishment of service levels with the service
providers, in the following areas:

documentation of controls and procedures;
- requirements for:
= appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibilities;
= reconciliation and monitoring of transactions; and
= yearly assessment of operational risks faced,
- the adequacy of controls and procedures to address the risks identified;
- compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;
- development of contingency plans;
- training and professional development;
— ethical and business standards; and
- risk mitigation, including insurance if this is effective.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

The existence of novel coronavirus (Covid-19) was confirmed in early 2020 and has spread across
the globe, causing disruptions to businesses and economic activity. The Fund considers this
outbreak to be a non-adjusting post balance sheet event. As the situation is fluid and rapidly
evolving, the Fund Manager does not consider it practicable to provide a quantitative estimate of
the potential impact of this outbreak on the Fund.

LAST VALUATION DAY

The Fund’s units are valued on Sunday and Tuesday and the unit price is announced on the
following business day. The last valuation day of the year was 31 December 2019 (2018: 31
December 2018).

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved by the Fund Board on 22 Rajab 1441H (corresponding
to 17 March 2020).
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